
 

 

 

 



 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 

o 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 



Action Who Status Due by Comment

FEBRUARY
APRIL

AP08/15 New Health and Safety policies (for Council function and staff function) and a Risk Register to be developed and then added to the Governance Manual. Jordan In progress Dec-15 Briefing Dec '15; Policy Feb '16

JUNE
AP18/15: A brief report to be prepared on measuring, transformations and prioritisation of initiatives for the joint .nz strategy Jay/Debbie In progress Oct-15 Deferred to February 2016

AP20/15: Draft .nz Framework Policy planned to be be presented at the October Council meeting. Jordan In progress Oct-15 Deferred to December 2015.

AP21/15: Chief Executive to consider options for default release after a time horizon of any commercial-in-confidence papers, and report back to Council in August.  Jordan Complete Oct-15 Paper to Dec '15 Council.

AUGUST
OCTOBER

AP28/15 Staff to update Hayden and Joy’s register of interest once received. Clare/Maria Complete Dec-15

AP29/15 Jordan to draft a brief paper for the December meeting regarding the outcome of the Strategy Day and implications for the Activity Plan in 2015/16 and beyond. Jordan Complete Dec-15

AP30/15 Jordan to look into the reporting requirements for NZRS regarding the segmentation of costs for delivering the core functions of the company, and discuss with 
Jay.

Jordan In progress Dec-15 Review Reporting Policy in 2016

AP31/15 Jordan to discuss with the subsidiaries CE regarding adding SoE review in each company’s quarterly report. Jordan In progress Dec-15 Review Reporting Policy in 2016

AP32/15 Membership Committee to re-draft the membership statement as discussed at this meeting and circulate to Council for discussion and approve via evote. Membership Cmte Complete Dec-15

AP33/15 Chief Executive to revise proposed meeting schedule for 2016 based on Council feedback, and circulate it for approval via evote. Jordan Complete Dec-15

2015 Action Point Register



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2015/16 YTD EOY 
Variance 2015-

16 

  
Internet New Zealand 

Incorporated 
Budget Oct-15 Forecast  +/- 

Income 

     

  

4595 1769 4565 -30 

Expenses 

     Internet Issues 679 395 655 24 

      Community Programme 1183 632 1167 16 

      International Engagement 249 142 174 75 

      Core Operations 1590 927 1810 -220 

 
        

Governance and Members 
 

426 201 426 0 

      International Events 255 174 239 16 

 



 

  
   

  

 

Total Expenses $000s 4382 2471 4471 -89 

     
  

 

Net Ordinary Income $000s 213 -702 94 -119 

Reconciliation to:  

    Operational Expenditure reconciliation 

 

 

Total Expenses $000s 4382 
 

  

 

Less subsidiaries rent  -59 
 

  

 

Total Expenses $000s 4323 
 

  

 

 

 

                                                



 

  

2015/16 2016/17 
Change from 

2015/16 

  Internet New Zealand Incorporated Budget Budget  +/- 

Income 

    

  

4595 4274 -321 

Expenses 

    Internet Issues 679 630 -49 

     Community Programme less the $90k carried forward funding from 
2014/15 - RN18/15 

1093 1276 183 

     International Engagement 249 179 -70 

     Core Operations – less $80k approved by Council for the move 1510 1666 156 

 
  

 

  

Governance and Members 426 439 13 

     International Events 255 35 -220 

  
   

 

Total Expenses $000s 4212 4225 13 

     

 

Net Ordinary Income $000s 383 49 -334 

     Reconciliation to:  

   Operational Expenditure reconciliation 

 

     

 

Total Expenses $000s 4212 4225 

 

 
 

   

 

Less subsidiaries rent contribution -59 -124 

 

 
 

   

 

Total Expenses $000s 4153 4101 

 



 

 



 

 

 

Internet Issues

Community Development

International Engagement

Governance and Members

International Events

Core Operations

Group shared expenses -
recharged



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

 



 

 

 





 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-year%20report%20Addington.net.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-year%20report%20Fabriko.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-year%20report%20Fabriko.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-Year%20Report%20(GCSN).pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-Year%20Report%20-%20Code%20Club%20Aotearoa%20(Michael%20Tengrove).pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-year%20report%20Tony%20Garry%20University%20of%20Otago.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-Year%20Report.1%20-%20University%20of%20Waikato%20(Sivadon%20Chaisiri%2C%20Ryan%20Ko)%20-%20InceptionReport.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-Year%20Report.2%20-%20University%20of%20Waikato%20(Sivadon%20Chaisiri%2C%20Ryan%20Ko)%20-%20InterimReport.pdf


 

 

https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Mid-Year%20Report%20Blind%20Citizens%20NZ-Internet%20NZ.pdf
https://cloud.internetnz.net.nz/index.php/apps/files/ajax/download.php?dir=%2FCouncil%2FReports%2FGrants%20reporting%2FGrants%20reports%20December%20Council&files=Final%20report%20University%20of%20Auckland%20(Aniket%20Mahanti)%20pdf






 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 

- 

- 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

o 



o 

o 

o 

 

 

 





Technical 

Industry organisation 

https://www.icann.org/progress
https://meetings.icann.org/en/dublin54/schedule/mon-gac-pswg-afternoon
https://gacweb.icann.org/display/gacweb/GAC+Public+Safety+Working+Group


Business development 



 

 

 



 

http://www.igf2015.br/declaration/


 

 

 

 





 

 

 



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Table of Contents

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015

Compilation Report 1

Consolidated Income Statement 2

Statement of Movements in Equity 3

Balance Sheet 4

Statement of Cash Flows 5

Cash Flow Reconciliation 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-1-

Internet New Zealand

Compilation Report

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015

1. Scope

On the basis of information you provided, we have compiled the Financial Statements, in accordance with 

Service Engagement Standard No. 2: Compilation of Financial Information, for Internet New Zealand. These 

are special purpose financial statements.

2. Responsibilities:

You are solely responsible for the information contained in the Financial Statements and have determined 

that the Financial Reporting Act 1993 used is appropriate to meet your needs and for the purpose that the 

Financial Statements were prepared. The Financial Statements were prepared exclusively for your benefit. 

We do not accept responsibility to any other person for the contents of the Financial Statements.

3. No Audit or Review Engagement Undertaken:

Our procedures use accounting expertise to undertake the compilation of the Financial Statements from 

information you provided. Our procedures do not include verification or validation procedures. No audit or 

review engagement has been performed and accordingly no assurance is expressed. 

4. Disclaimer of Liability:

Neither we nor any of our employees accept any responsibility for the reliability, accuracy or completeness 

of the informtaion from which the Financial Statements have been compiled nor do we accept any liability of 

any kind whatsoever, including liability by reason of negligence, to any person for losses incurred as a result 

of placing reliance on the compiled financial information.

Deloitte

Wellington NZ

9-Nov-15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consolidated Income Statement

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015

Qtr YTD Qtr YTD Qtr YTD Qtr YTD

Income 2,475,892 4,918,758 80,818 157,789 2,457,309 4,886,088 484,460 960,920

Other Income 345 345 345 345 0 0 0 0

Dividends Received 0 0 1,570,058 1,570,058 0 0 0 0

Interest Received 114,623 213,019 4,535 10,421 101,591 192,766 8,497 9,832

Managed Funds Income (26,519) 28,210 (26,519) 28,210 0 0 0 0

Total Income 2,564,341 5,160,332 1,629,237 1,766,823 2,558,900 5,078,854 492,957 970,752

Less Expenses

Direct Expenses 162,152 350,458 0 0 629,612 1,285,378 0 0

Other Expenses 2,439,489 4,718,956 1,137,571 2,111,870 963,368 1,921,438 417,785 836,767

Total Expenses 2,601,641 5,069,414 1,137,571 2,111,870 1,592,980 3,206,816 417,785 836,767

Net Profit (Loss) Before Tax (37,300) 90,918 491,666 (345,047) 965,920 1,872,038 75,172 133,985

Less Provision for Tax 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net Profit (Loss) After Tax (37,300) 90,918 491,666 (345,047) 965,920 1,872,038 75,172 133,985

Notes:

The income and expenditure lines for the individual entities do not add to the Group totals due to the following

intra-group entries being eliminated:

1. GSE paid by NZRS and DNCL to INZ

2. The DNCL fee paid by NZRS to DNCL

3. The dividend paid by NZRS to INZ

The Group year to date net profit is $1,570,058 (quarter $1,570,058) less than the sum of the individual entities due to the

dividend received by INZ from NZRS being removed from income while the payment by NZRS shows under their

statement of movements in equity on page 3.

INZ NZRS DNCLGroup



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Statement of Movements in Equity

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015

Qtr YTD Qtr YTD Qtr YTD Qtr YTD

Opening Equity 9,020,405 8,892,187 4,325,218 5,161,931 4,370,799 3,464,681 324,388 265,575

Plus:

Shares Subscribed 0 0 0 0 30,000 30,000 580,000 580,000

Net Profit (Loss) After Tax (37,300) 90,918 491,666 (345,047) 965,920 1,872,038 75,172 133,985

Less:

Dividend Paid 0 0 0 0 1,570,058 1,570,058 0 0

Closing Equity 8,983,105 8,983,105 4,816,884 4,816,884 3,796,661 3,796,661 979,560 979,560

INZ NZRS DNCLGroup

-3-



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2015

Group INZ NZRS DNCL

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,813,358 1,567,348 10,160,981 1,085,029

Managed Funds 2,404,389 2,404,389 0 0

Other Current Assets 1,486,210 116,615 1,330,267 39,328

Total Current Assets 16,703,957 4,088,352 11,491,248 1,124,357

Property, Equipment & Software 1,288,690 432,193 817,900 38,597

Intangible Assets 0 0 0 0

Investments

Shares and Loans 0 610,000 0 0

Total Assets 17,992,647 5,130,545 12,309,148 1,162,954

Less Liabilities:

Deferred Income 8,145,931 0 8,145,931 0

Trade and Other Payables 863,611 313,661 366,556 183,394

Total Liabilities 9,009,542 313,661 8,512,487 183,394

Net Book Value of Assets 8,983,105 4,816,884 3,796,661 979,560

Represented By:

Total Equity 8,983,105 4,816,884 3,796,661 979,560

-4-



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internet New Zealand

Statement of Cashflows

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015

Qtr YTD

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash was provided from:

Receipts from customers 2,788,414 5,317,959

Interest Received 114,623 213,019

Managed Funds Income (26,519) 28,210

Total Received 2,876,518 5,559,188

Cash was distributed to:

Payments to Suppliers and Employees 2,720,441 4,728,291

Total Payments 2,720,441 4,728,291

Net Flows From Operating Activities 156,077 830,897

Cash Flows From Investing & Financing Activities

Cash was distributed to:

Purchase of Property, Equipment & Software 114,378 169,901

Net Cash Flows From Investing & Financing Activities (114,378) (169,901)

Net Increase Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents 41,699 660,996

Plus Opening Cash 15,176,048 14,556,751

Closing Cash Carried Forward 15,217,747 15,217,747

Closing Cash Comprises

Cash & Cash Equivalents 12,813,358 12,813,358

Managed Funds 2,404,389 2,404,389

15,217,747 15,217,747

Cash Flow Reconciliation

Net Profit (Loss) After Tax (37,300) 90,918

Plus (Less) non cash items

Depreciation 198,536 409,911

Subtotal 161,236 500,829

Movement in Working Capital

(increase) decrease in receivables (273,860) 326,836

increase (decrease) in payables (43,476) (395,624)

increase (decrease) in deferred income 312,177 398,856

Net Cash Flows From operations 156,077 830,897

-5-

Group



 

 

 



Page 1 of 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  



Page 3 of 12 

 

   

 

 

 

 
 

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

400000

450000

Expenditure Report by Nature 
YTD Actual v Budget 

Actual

Budget



Page 4 of 12 

 

 

      
InternetNZ  YTD  Apr - Oct 15 

 
Budget 

 
$ Over Budget 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
     

 
Income 

        

  
500 · Operating Income 

     

   
530 · Shared Group Services 183,171.68  

 
183,457.00  

 
(285.32) 

   
542 · Membership - Corporate 2,400.00  

 
5,425.00  

 
(3,025.00) 

   
546 · Membership - Individual 4,526.09  

 
7,050.00  

 
(2,523.91) 

  
Total 500 · Operating Income 190,097.77  

 
195,932.00  

 
(5,834.23) 

  
570 · Sundry Income 345.00  

 
0.00  

 
345.00  

  
580 · Investment Income 

     

   
583 · Dividends 1,570,058.00  

 
1,570,058.00  

 
0.00  

   
586 · Interest 8,878.00  

 
15,000.00  

 
(6,122.00) 

  
Total 580 · Investment Income 1,578,936.00  

 
1,585,058.00  

 
(6,122.00) 

 
Total Income 

  
1,769,378.77  

 
1,780,990.00  

 
(11,611.23) 

 
Expense 

        

  
600 · Remuneration 

     

   
601 · ACC Levy 3,129.24  

 
5,435.06  

 
(2,305.82) 

   
625 · Miscellaneous Staff Costs 2,723.34  

 
4,676.42  

 
(1,953.08) 

   
630 · Recruitment 105,667.96  

 
96,136.00  

 
9,531.96  

   
635 · Staff Training 9,455.85  

 
23,848.61  

 
(14,392.76) 

   
651 · Wages & Salaries 

     

    
651-01 · Kiwi Saver -  Employer Contribution 22,413.87  

 
22,121.59  

 
292.28  

    
651 · Wages & Salaries - Other 640,305.97  

 
666,188.48  

 
(25,882.51) 

   
Total 651 · Wages & Salaries 662,719.84  

 
688,310.07  

 
(25,590.23) 

   
653 · Wages - Casual & Temporary 14,317.30  

 
4,620.00  

 
9,697.30  

   
655 · Contracted Technical Services 1,798.26  

 
3,640.00  

 
(1,841.74) 

  
Total 600 · Remuneration 799,811.79  

 
826,666.16  

 
(26,854.37) 

  
800 · Operating Expenses 

     

   
801 · Accountancy Fees 11,882.42  

 
12,000.00  

 
(117.58) 

   
805 · Advertising & Marketing 1,615.92  

 
3,936.10  

 
(2,320.18) 

   
808 · Audit Fees 30.00  

 
0.00  

 
30.00  

   
809 · Bank Charges 1,632.97  

 
1,273.56  

 
359.41  

   
811 · Conferences 4,271.18  

 
5,834.08  

 
(1,562.90) 

   
813 · Consultants 63,301.72  

 
100,120.00  

 
(36,818.28) 

   
816 · Depreciation 35,000.00  

 
35,000.00  

 
0.00  

   
817 · Domain Names 451.95  

 
324.00  

 
127.95  

   
820 · General Office Expenses 21,030.65  

 
21,004.89  

 
25.76  

   
822 · Governance Training 7,241.04  

 
21,000.00  

 
(13,758.96) 

   
824 · Honoraria 117,289.02  

 
116,828.04  

 
460.98  

   
826 · Legal Fees 8,583.18  

 
26,000.00  

 
(17,416.82) 

   
829 · Meeting Costs 47,715.55  

 
55,123.71  

 
(7,408.16) 

   
835 · Postages & Couriers 2,959.29  

 
2,455.67  

 
503.62  

   
851 · Repairs and Maintenance 1,653.69  

 
1,690.29  

 
(36.60) 

   
853 · R & M - Software 2,539.21  

 
4,895.90  

 
(2,356.69) 

   
855 · Printing & Stationery 15,542.96  

 
13,916.88  

 
1,626.08  



Page 5 of 12 

 

   
860 · Subscriptions 23,638.56  

 
17,073.17  

 
6,565.39  

   
870 · Telecommunications 38,376.04  

 
38,577.00  

 
(200.96) 

   
872 · Travel & Accommodation - International 9,186.08  

 
12,000.00  

 
(2,813.92) 

   
873 · Travel & Accommodation - National 44,841.26  

 
41,624.16  

 
3,217.10  

   
875 · Web Site Updates & Hosting 2,958.00  

 
2,660.00  

 
298.00  

   
Total 876 · Issues Programme 323,155.33  

 
329,490.00  

 
(6,334.67) 

   
Total 878 · Community Funding 326,693.89  

 
333,834.00  

 
(7,140.11) 

   
Total 880 · Community Engagement 133,779.88  

 
157,667.00  

 
(23,887.12) 

   
Total 887 · International Event 161,643.18  

 
175,000.00  

 
(13,356.82) 

  
Total 800 · Operating Expenses 1,407,012.97  

 
1,529,328.45  

 
(122,315.48) 

  
900 · Overheads 

     

   
915 · Cleaning Costs 21,359.83  

 
22,212.00  

 
(852.17) 

   
933 · Electricity 14,544.85  

 
16,095.00  

 
(1,550.15) 

   
950 · Insurance 5,496.19  

 
6,126.19  

 
(630.00) 

   
972 · Moving expenses 35,395.95  

 
55,000.00  

 
(19,604.05) 

   
975 · Rent Paid 185,401.50  

 
185,730.20  

 
(328.70) 

   
980 · Security 2,275.04  

 
2,170.00  

 
105.04  

  
Total 900 · Overheads 264,473.36  

 
287,333.39  

 
(22,860.03) 

 

Total 
Expense 

  
2,471,298.12  

 
2,643,328.00  

 
(172,029.88) 

Net Ordinary Income   (701,919.35)   (862,338.00)   160,418.65  

Other Income/Expense 
     

 
Other Income 

       

  
1000 · Special Dividends 

     

   
1010 · Special Dividends - Interest 2,174.62  

 
0.00  

 
2,174.62  

   
1030 · Investment Income 79,867.48  

 
0.00  

 
79,867.48  

  
Total 1000 · Special Dividends 82,042.10  

 
0.00  

 
82,042.10  

 
Total Other Income 82,042.10  

 
0.00  

 
82,042.10  

 
Other Expense 

      

  
1900 · Special Dividend Expenses-Overhead 

     

   
1950 · Investment Funds Management Fee 5,270.66  

 
0.00  

 
5,270.66  

  
Total 1900 · Special Dividend Expenses-Overhead 5,270.66  

 
0.00  

 
5,270.66  

 
Total Other Expense 5,270.66  

 
0.00  

 
5,270.66  

Net Other Income 
  

76,771.44  
 

0.00  
 

76,771.44  

Net Income 
   

(625,147.91) 
 

(862,338.00) 
 

237,190.09  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 12 

 

 

 
 

 

  

-1,200,000

-1,000,000

-800,000

-600,000

-400,000

-200,000

0

200,000

400,000

Net Income 
YTD Actual/YTD Budget 

 

 

YTD Actual

YTD Budget



Page 7 of 12 

 

ASSETS 
   

 
Current Assets 

 

  
Cheque/Savings 

 

    
Total Cheque/Savings 357,875.80  

   
Total 121 · Term Deposits-Special Dividends 819,845.12  

   
130 · USD Bank Account 346.77  

   
150 · Petty Cash 400.00  

   
122 · Investment Funds 

 

    
122-01 · GMI Investment 1,216,310.52  

    
122-20 · Milford Asset 1,238,925.58  

   
Total 122 · Investment Funds 2,455,236.10  

       

  
Total Other Current Assets 126,661.88  

 
Total Current Assets 3,760,365.67  

 
Fixed Assets 

 

 
Total Fixed Assets 507,933.46  

 
Other Assets 

 

  
270 · Ordinary Share Capital 30,000.00  

  
271 · Shares in DNCL 580,000.00  

 
Total Other Assets 610,000.00  

TOTAL ASSETS 4,878,299.13  

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
 

 
Liabilities 

 

  
Current Liabilities 

 

   
Accounts Payable 

 

    
300 · Accounts Payable 176,334.97  

   
Total Accounts Payable 176,334.97  

   
Other Current Liabilities 

 

    
305 · Accruals 116,190.64  

    
311 · Lease Incentives 8,330.14  

    
Total 327 · Payroll Liabilities 40,660.54  

   
Total Other Current Liabilities 165,181.32  

  
Total Current Liabilities 341,516.29  

 
Total Liabilities 341,516.29  

 
Equity 

   

  
412 · Retained Earnings 5,161,930.75  

  
Net Income (625,147.91) 

 
Total Equity 4,536,782.84  

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,878,299.13  



Page 8 of 12 

 

 
 

 
Date Bank Term Amount 

02/12/2014 Kiwibank 12 months 285,439 

11/11/2014 ASB 12 months 445,803 

28/02/2015 BNZ 12 months 88,602 

    

Total $ 819,844 

 

Date Managers Amount 

20/06/2013 GMI 1,216,311 

20/06/2013 Milford 1,238,925 

Total $ 2,455,236 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 12 

 

    
 

Nov-14 1,131,757 1,118,854 2,250,611 

 Dec-14 1,141,590 1,124,028 2,265,618 

 Jan-15 1,163,252 1,146,806 2,310,058 

 Feb-15 1,196,742 1,170,894 2,367,636 

 Mar-15 1,201,944 1,178,979 2,380,923 

 Apr-15 1,205,222 1,174,443 2,379,665 

 May-15 1,212,508 1,235,719 2,448,227 

 Jun-15 1,209,782 1,224,387 2,434,169 

 Jul-15 1,233,368 1,250,246 2,483,614 

 Aug-15 1,212,988 1,226,115 2,439,103 

 Sep-15 1,203,796 1,200,593 2,404,389 

 Oct-15 1,238,926 1,216,311 2,455,236 

      
 

 
 

    

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

      
 
 

    

    

    

    

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

Investment Funds 
Monthly Closing Balances  

 
 

Milford Asset
Management

Gareth Morgan
Investments



Page 10 of 12 

 

    

    

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

Cash in Bank/Invested 
Actual/Forecast 

 

Actual

Forecast

Budget

Term
Deposits/Invest
ed Funds

Reserves Policy



Page 11 of 12 

 

Attachment G: Cash flow forecast to October 2015 

 

 
Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Total 

RECEIPTS Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Proj Proj Proj Proj Proj Proj 

Invoiced Sales 234,513 55,501 13,930 19,502 71,187 40,804 130,882 8,657 36,835 36,836 36,836 524,302 1,209,785 

Special Dividends  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Investment Income 232 77,155 0 57,474 0 0 58,114 0 0 0 0 0 192,975 

Special Dividends Interest 0 0 2,174 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,174 

Dividends 0 0 0 1,570,058 0 0 0 1,300,000 0 0 1,300,000 0 4,170,058 

Interest 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 

Interest Received 990 2,443 248 1,762 1,806 1,312 631 1,736 2,289 927 1,976 3,904 20,024 

Special Dividend Term Deposits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sundry Receivables 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Prepayments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Interest Receivable 139 1,673 2,664 2,656 0 0 0 4,050 4,796 0 1,131 0 17,109 

RWT Received 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

GST 0 56,616 55,932 0 0 64,831 5,788 0 132,670 0 79,994 0 395,831 

 
235,874 193,418 74,948 1,651,452 72,993 106,947 195,415 1,314,443 176,590 37,763 1,419,937 528,206 6,007,986 

PAYMENTS 
             

Invoiced Costs 508,731 422,121 208,465 463,472 415,741 364,701 452,247 176,335 298,214 393,956 405,079 354,104 4,463,166 

ACC Levies 0 0 0 3,520 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,520 

Salary & Wages 33,571 47,041 92,643 76,192 58,352 54,898 60,774 56,841 85,478 56,837 56,841 85,908 765,376 

Investment Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sundry Payables 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Prepayments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

RWT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

PAYE 9,562 29,459 30,958 34,213 41,891 34,478 20,427 46,650 35,048 35,050 27,996 35,156 380,888 

GST 4,992 0 0 697 6,192 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,881 

 
556,856 498,621 332,066 578,094 522,176 454,077 533,448 279,826 418,740 485,843 489,916 475,168 5,624,831 

NET CASH FLOW -320,982 -305,203 -257,118 1,073,358 -449,183 -347,130 -338,033 1,034,617 -242,150 -448,080 930,021 53,038 383,155 

OPENING BANK 4,577,995 4,257,013 3,951,810 3,694,692 4,768,050 4,318,867 3,971,737 3,633,704 4,668,321 4,426,171 3,978,091 4,908,112 4,577,995 

CLOSING BANK 4,257,013 3,951,810 3,694,692 4,768,050 4,318,867 3,971,737 3,633,704 4,668,321 4,426,171 3,978,091 4,908,112 4,961,150 4,961,150 

              



Page 12 of 12 

 

              

              Bank Account Balances as per 
BS Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 

 
ANZ Savings 92,911 173,259 502 503 501,360 502,288 302,916 

      
ANZ Current 63,211 114,917 39,776 1,463,689 558,158 244,815 54,960 

      
ANZ Term Deposit 505,088 0 0 0 0 0 0 

      
ASB Term Deposit 440,965 440,965 445,803 445,803 445,803 445,803 445,803 

      
BNZ Term Deposit 488,602 488,602 488,602 88,602 88,602 88,602 88,602 

      
Kiwibank Term Deposit 285,439 285,439 285,439 285,439 285,439 285,439 285,439 

      
USD Bank Account  (NZD) 0 0 0 0 0 0 347 

      
Petty Cash 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 

      
Investment Funds 2,380,397 2,448,227 2,434,169 2,483,614 2,439,104 2,404,389 2,455,236 

      

 
4,257,013 3,951,810 3,694,692 4,768,050 4,318,867 3,971,737 3,633,704 0 0 0 0 0 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



	

Business Development Strategy: First Draft – November 2015  Page 1 

     Draft Strategy – November 2015 
 

FOR DISCUSSION 
 

	

Business Development Strategy: First Draft 
	
Author:     Jordan Carter, Chief Executive   
 
Purpose of paper: To share a draft Business Development Strategy for the 

InternetNZ Group, for discussion with & feedback from 
members and other interested parties. 

 

What is this paper? 
This paper is to share a strategy for Business Development for the InternetNZ 
group. It’s designed for discussion and debate by Council, members and others 
interested in this part of InternetNZ’s work.   
 
The first two pages explain what the issue is and how you can have your say. The 
rest of the paper is the draft Strategy. A revised Business Development Policy 
that is consistent with this Strategy is also attached for your feedback. 
 
Once finalised, the Strategy will guide decisions across the InternetNZ group on 
business development matters. The Policy sets out the rules for doing it, including 
decision processes and spending limits. 
 
Background 
InternetNZ has been discussing the possibility of new lines of income-generating 
business for around five years. The strategy for executing business development 
plans has been left implicit, and since most work to date has been done by NZRS, 
entrusted to that company’s Board. The Business Development Policy under 
which that work was done was created a few years ago, and most recently 
updated in February 2014. 
 
In December 2014 the Council adopted a new Group Strategy for InternetNZ, 
designed to serve the organisation for the five years 2015-2020. One of the five 
goals in that Strategy was to do business development, and the Council agreed 
that a fleshed out, transparent strategy should guide business development. 
 
A strategy is just an explanation of how you aim to achieve a goal. The goal 
Council adopted for Business Development is simple. By 2020: 
 
One million New Zealand dollars of group income (revenue) comes from sources 
that are not dependent on being the designated manager for .nz 
 
 
Who is accountable? 
The Council will hold InternetNZ, DNCL and NZRS responsible for ensuring any 
work they do on business development is consistent with what is in this Strategy 
and with what the Policy requires.  



	

Business Development Strategy: First Draft – November 2015  Page 2 

 
InternetNZ’s Council is responsible for the Group Strategy that set out the goal. It 
is responsible for this Strategy and for the associated Governance Policy that 
specifies requirements for how Business Development will be done. 
 
Staff and contractors all across the InternetNZ group will be held accountable for 
behaving consistent with the requirements of this Strategy and Policy by the 
Council or by the relevant subsidiary Board.  
 
In terms of outcomes – the Council is responsible for the decision to permit 
business development and for deciding the quantum of InternetNZ group financial 
resources at risk ($400,000 in direct costs in 2014-2017).  
 
Council and subsidiary Boards are responsible for ensuring business development 
activities do not impede the delivery of other InternetNZ goals, most particularly 
the operation of the .nz ccTLD. They are also responsible for transparently 
accounting for the non-direct costs of business development activity, as set out in 
the Policy. 
 
How can I have a say? 
 
You can provide feedback at any time by email to Jordan Carter, who will collate 
it for Council consideration. His email is jordan@internetnz.net.nz.  
 
You are also very welcome to share your views with any or all Council members, 
and / or to discuss this work on the members-discuss@mailman.internetnz.net.nz 
mailing list. Staff will do their best to monitor social media but please don’t rely on 
this being caught. 
 
Feedback would be ideally shared by Wednesday 2 December so that it can be 
collated and prepared for a Council discussion at its December meeting. 
 
If the discussion among members indicates a significant level of interest, 
InternetNZ will look at organising specific meetings (in person or online) to talk 
about the draft Strategy and policy. 
 
We look forward to your thoughts.  
 
 
 
 
Jamie Baddeley, President 
 
Jordan Carter, Chief Executive 
 
 
20 November 2015 
  



	

Business Development Strategy: First Draft – November 2015  Page 3 

Business Development Strategy (Draft) 
 
Introduction 
 
InternetNZ is involved in business development to reinforce sustainable financial 
resources for the organisation in the long term. More income will allow InternetNZ 
to do more to pursue its objects, and to work in the public interest to promote the 
Internet's benefits and uses and protect its potential..  
 
At the time of writing, InternetNZ’s only significant funding source is from 
registrations of .nz domain names1. These funds allow for the operation of the .nz 
country code top level domain, and surplus resources fund all of InternetNZ’s 
activity. 
 
InternetNZ operates the .nz ccTLD on behalf of the Internet community. In 
Council’s view, it would not be prudent to assume that it will always have that role 
(though no changes are anticipated).  
 
Since InternetNZ’s vision is not likely to be realised in the short or medium term, 
and since greater financial resources would allow more work to be done in 
achieving it, a sustainable and diversified set of income sources are a requirement 
to ensure ongoing operations. 
 
This Strategy sets out the goal for our business development efforts, the things 
we need to change to achieve that goal (strategic “transformations”), and the 
approach we proposed to take in doing this work.  
 
It consists of the following sections: 
 

 Our goal in business development 
 Key strategic transformations 
 Approach to business development 
 Business development “pipeline” 
 Limitations on business development 
 Key risks and mitigations 

 
There are a number of practical considerations about how business development 
is managed across the InternetNZ Group. These are set out in the “Group Policy – 
Business Development”, a governance policy of the Council that is binding across 
the group.  
 
Success in business development will be measured against the goal set out in this 
strategy. It would benefit New Zealand’s Internet community by securing more 
resources for work on the Internet community’s priorities. It would be 
demonstrated proof of an innovative, changing organisation that can take on new 
things and achieve more than it does today. 
 
 
 

																																																								
1 Total income across the group was $8.7m in 2014/15, and InternetNZ received around $2.7m of this 
by way of dividend from NZRS. An infographic showing the use of funds is available on the website 
at https://internetnz.nz/about-us/internetnz-group  



	

Business Development Strategy: First Draft – November 2015  Page 4 

The Goal of Business Development 
The goal for business development is to diversify revenue sources away from 
those that rely on InternetNZ’s role as the .nz ccTLD manager. Our 2015-2020 
Group Strategy defines the goal as follows: 
 
One million New Zealand dollars of group income (revenue) comes from sources 
that are not dependent on being the designated manager for .nz 
 
In practical terms this means: 
 

 By the end of the 2019/2020 business year, there is reasonable confidence 
that in the financial year beginning 1 April 2020, there will be $1m/year in 
revenue from business operations not in place at 1 April 2015. 
 

 Such business operations will have no dependence on our current role as 
.nz ccTLD manager – that is, they will be unaffected by a change in .nz 
ccTLD manager (including by not relying on contractual arrangements with 
a future manager either during or after a transition, or contractual 
arrangements that were only possible due to that role). 

 
Besides delivering on this Goal, we anticipate a number of other benefits from 
undertaking business development: 
 

 Increases InternetNZ’s resilience to the negative impact of volatility in the 
domain name market. 

 
 Embeds a culture of innovation and keeps InternetNZ in touch with the 

changing needs of Internet users. 
 

 Extends the delivery mechanisms available to InternetNZ to include direct 
service provision, which may be the best way to deliver a particular object. 

 
 Expands the funds available to InternetNZ to use in pursuit of its objects. 

 
 
Strategic Transformations 
The following strategic transformations drive business development.  
 
A “strategic transformation” notes a current situation or reality, and then defines 
what you want the future state to look like. The aim is to test your progress 
“from” the current state “to” the desired future state.  
 
These are the Transformations from the Group Strategic Plan: 
 

Group Strategy Transformation/s
 From To 

5 All significant group income is 
dependent on being the designated 
manager for .nz 

$1m of group income (revenue) comes 
from sources that are not dependent on 
being the designated manager for .nz 

5.1 Clarity about forms of business 
development to be pursued is missing 

Agreement across the group regarding 
what forms of business development to 
pursue  



	

Business Development Strategy: First Draft – November 2015  Page 5 

5.2 No clear business development strategy Clear business development strategy 
agreed after engagement with 
membership 

5.3 No commercial products developed and 
in production 

Three commercial products developed 
and in production by 2018 

 
5.1 and 5.2 are realised by this Strategy. 5.3 is a route to delivering the overall 
goal.  
 
The following Business Development Transformations complement those from the 
Group strategy, and NZRS as lead entity in pursuing business development is 
tasked with bringing them about. 
 

Business Development Transformations 
 From To 

1 One product is in production Three commercial products developed 
and in production generating positive 
cashflow (by 2018) 

2 N  product/s in development 1-3 commercial products in development 
at any one time (by 2017) 

3 Single channel/customer base of 
registrars/registrants 

Dual channel/customer base of 
registrars/registrants and ISPs/Internet 
users 

4 InternetNZ group not known as 
conducting business development 

InternetNZ group recognised as 
succeeding at business development 

 
 
Approach to business development 
The following broad elements comprise the approach to business development 
that is being taken to deliver on the goal and the transformations set out in the 
previous section: 
 
Who is responsible for doing it? 
 

 NZRS is tasked with leading business development work, as the commercial 
vehicle within the group with greatest capacity to do so. In particular, the 
NZRS Board is the decision-maker with respect to particular projects. 

 
 NZRS through its Board is held to account by InternetNZ’s Council for 

pursuing business development consistent with this Strategy and with the 
Business Development Policy. 

 
What sort of projects/products? 
 

 Business development projects cannot be contradictory to InternetNZ’s 
objects, but do not have to deliver them directly. 

 
 The general approach is to build on existing capabilities and strengths. 

 
 Radical shifts in market focus that require divergent skill bases are unlikely 

to be preferred in the first instance without careful analysis. 
 

 Projects of a range of sizes will be entertained, as to deliver the overall goal 
requires significant cashflow to be generated. 



	

Business Development Strategy: First Draft – November 2015  Page 6 

 
 There is a general preference for wholesale products – retail channels to 

market would only be contemplated in partnership with a proven retailer. 
 

 There is a general preference for local markets. 
 
Transparency 
 
The resources deployed in business development are accounted for transparently. 
There is a cap on the resources that can be deployed (both direct costs and staff 
resources exploring and managing business development). 
 
 
Business development “pipeline” 
 
It is anticipated that most projects will be developed in-house by NZRS, but if a 
large project is contemplated a different ownership structure will be considered at 
the outset (may be a subsidiary company of NZRS, a new InternetNZ subsidiary, 
or some form of joint venture). 
 
Where a project reaches the appropriate stage of success, NZRS will consult with 
InternetNZ as to whether it should be retained (i.e. for cashflow) and if so, as a 
separate company or as an NZRS activity, or whether it should be divested (i.e. 
for capital gain).  
 
 
Limitations on business development 
 
The following broad strategic limitations apply to business development, and are 
set out in more detail in the Business Development Policy: 
 

 Business development projects cannot contradict InternetNZ’s objects or 
jeopardise the group’s charitable status. 

 
 The limit on direct costs cannot be exceeded. 

 
 No business development project will involve roles prohibited under the .nz 

policy framework (e.g. NZRS will not establish a .nz authorised registrar). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Key risks and mitigations 
 
There are some key risks that arise through the business development process. 
These, along with key mitigations, are outlined below. Further risks identified in 
the consultation process for this draft Strategy will be added in the next version. 
 
 
 



	

Business Development Strategy: First Draft – November 2015  Page 7 

Risk Mitigation

Perceived self-dealing / 
conflict of interest 
(commercial versus public 
good imperatives) 

Commercial activity is done by/in limited liability 
companies with governing bodies differently 
composed than InternetNZ Council. 
 
Transparency and community involvement in 
establishing policy principles and detailed stances 
on issues. 
 
Clear internal understanding of and external 
transparency around the relationship between 
commercial activity and public good for any 
specific product or service. 
 
Staff that pursue commercial and public good 
activities have clear policy frameworks regarding 
appropriate boundaries and relationship between 
the two. 

Conflict over use of .nz 
funds for new activities 
 

Clear establishment of mandate to take this 
approach. 
 
Clear and consistent communication across the 
group as to the limited scope of such resource use. 

Conflict through entering 
new markets that sees 
InternetNZ competing with 
existing businesses 
(including, potentially, those 
of InternetNZ members). 
 

Competitor conflict assessed in making business 
development decisions with regard to potential for 
public good, delivery of objects and competitor 
responses. 
 
Preference for novel or innovative business 
development that means that the competition 
introduced by us is good for the consumer. 

Perceived incompatibility 
between .nz steward role 
and any new commercial 
activity 

Principled case made consistently across the group 
for the desirability of securing InternetNZ’s objects 
independent of its role as the .nz steward. 
 
Regular testing of this question with the local 
Internet community. 
 
Clear information regarding actions of other ccTLD 
stewards in this arena. 

Perceived risk of loss of 
focus on .nz caused by 
diversification 
 

Conduct new business development in commercial 
entities that are already commercial entities (i.e. so 
only in NZRS or a new subsidiary). 
 
Staff that pursue commercial and .nz activities 
have clear policy frameworks regarding 
appropriate boundaries. 

 



 

 

 



GRP-BUS: Business Development (DRAFT)	 Page 1 of 4	

Business Development (DRAFT) 
 

Policy GRP-BUS: Business Development
Version Version 3.1 
Date in force December 2015 
Planned review December 2017 

 

This draft update to the Business Development Policy has been prepared to be the 
policy alongside the draft Business Development Strategy. Both are open for input 
from members and any other interested parties. Council will take all such input into 
account in finalising, or preparing a further draft of, this policy. 
	
	

InternetNZ’s Group Strategic Plan sets out the imperative for business development: 
to diversify income beyond that arising from .nz domain name registrations.  
 
A Business Development Strategy that sets out the strategic approach to business 
development has been prepared. That is the document that sets out the rationale for 
business development and the overall approach taken. Actions under this policy 
must be aimed at achieving, and be consistent with, the Business Development 
Strategy. 
 
 

The purpose of this policy is therefore to: 
 
1. Establish authority and responsibility for business development; 
 
2. Describe the high level test of eligibility by which business development 

opportunities are measured;  
 
3. Establish limits to the resources applied to business development;  
 
4. Outline return expectations for business development; 
 
5. Establish transparency requirement for business development; and 
 
6. Ensure that governance bodies, staff and members are appropriately involved 

throughout the decision making process. 
 
The lead entity for Business Development is NZRS. The NZRS Board is accountable 
for ensuring that it complies with this policy. 
 
 



GRP-BUS: Business Development (DRAFT)	 Page 2 of 4	

The final authority for implementing new business opportunities rests with NZRS.  
NZRS is responsible for delivering on the Business Development Strategy. 
 
Progress in delivering the strategy will be formally reported to the shareholder on an 
annual basis at the end of each financial year, and a public version of such report will 
be published. 
 
NZRS is required to operate on a no-surprises basis with Council. 
 
Council may consult members and the public on individual opportunities where it 
identifies particular issues or sensitivities that make this necessary.  Otherwise, all 
business development projects will include stakeholder and member engagement 
plans. 
 
Where any business development project interacts with the .nz policy framework, 
DNCL’s role is to assess whether the project complies with the framework, which it 
will do in a timely fashion. 

For any business development opportunity there are a number of key steps that are 
not related to the potential viability of a proposal that need to be addressed first. 
 
Step 1: 
 
Does the proposal conflict with the objects of InternetNZ? 
Proposals do not have to deliver the objects, but they cannot conflict with them. 
 
Step 2: 
 
Would the proposal endanger the charitable status of InternetNZ?   
Charitable status is of considerable financial benefit to InternetNZ.  Any proposition 
likely to endanger this would need special consideration. 
 

Step 3: 
 
Would the proposal result in significant stakeholder conflict?  
The existence of a competitor in the same area would not necessarily disqualify a 
business case from being advanced but it would need special consideration. 
 
 

Pursuant to the Strategy, the following limits apply: 
 
Limit type Limit value
Overall gross direct expenditure on 
business development. 

$400,000 (either opex or capex) from 1 
April 2014 to 31 March 2017. 



GRP-BUS: Business Development (DRAFT)	 Page 3 of 4	

There are three levels of financial return that may be provided by any new service: 
 

1. Profitable, returning dividend to InternetNZ. 
2. Financially self-sustaining through commercial activity. 
3. Running at a loss and requiring ongoing financial investment. 

 
The decision on the expected return of any individual opportunity will be made on a 
case-by-case basis.  It may be that a single service could be provided in different 
ways, each with a different level of financial return, in which case all options should 
be considered at the same time. 
 
Where business development work suggests a new project or service that isn’t 
commercial (i.e. service development not business development) it is not covered by 
this Business Development Policy. Any business unit which contemplated such a 
project would discuss it with Council prior to committing direct financial resources. 
 
 

Business development is conducted on a “no surprises” basis – InternetNZ will never 
be put in a position of being surprised by NZRS. Regular reports on business 
development will be provided to InternetNZ and public versions made available on 
the website 
 
It is recognised that commercial confidentiality may restrict the general principle of 
transparency that the group adopts, but this restriction should only be applied where 
necessary, in as limited a manner as possible and for a limited a period as possible.  
 
The resources deployed by NZRS in conducting business development, and the 
income gained, will be transparently reported on as follows: 
 

 Direct costs and direct revenue will be included in the company’s regular 
financial reports to the shareholder – and, for costs, in aggregate over the 
three-year period of the expenditure limit noted above. 

 Indirect costs will be disclosed in the Statement of Direction and Goals on an 
annual basis, through a best-efforts estimate of staff salaries devoted to 
business development (both development of opportunities and 
implementation of projects). 

 Regular reporting on business development projects and overall progress, to 
give effect to the no surprises commitment, will be done on a quarterly basis 
to the shareholder, and will include a public version which will be published. 

 

The expenditure limit set out above is designed to allow NZRS to finance the initial 
phases of a project. When a project has developed to the point it is considered 
viable, NZRS will recommend to Council for decision what legal structure and 
financial arrangements should be put in place around that opportunity in order to: 
 
 Partition risk. 
 Allocate and make best use of resources. 



GRP-BUS: Business Development (DRAFT)	 Page 4 of 4	

 Make best use of skills and expertise. 
 
 
The options for legal structure are: 
 

1. As an ongoing project within an existing entity (InternetNZ or one of its 
subsidiaries). 

2. A new subsidiary of InternetNZ. 
3. A new subsidiary of an existing subsidiary. 
4. Disposal of the business activity (sale to another). 
5. Licensing of the product/service or relevant IP. 

 



 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.internetnz.nz/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://internetnz.nz/tld-principles


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

https://internetnz.nz/governance-policies-register


 

 

 



1

2 &' means that all those listed do it jointly, 'or' means that either does it depending on the circumstances 

3

4

5 Propose Change' means proposing a change to the element not to the ownership of the element

6 Where 'Consult with LIC' has more than one business unit then the nature of the change under proposal determines which business units does the consulation

Source

Elements Owner

Delegated 

To Formal Reporting Propose Change Notified

Verify - 

Principles & 

Policy

Verify - 

Technical & 

Commercial Review for SLA Consult with LIC

Verify - 

Community 

acceptance Approve Change Implement

After the fact 

intervention Document

IANA database INZ - - DNCL or NZRS or ANY ALL - - - - - INZ INZ - -

This framework INZ DNCL & NZRS DNCL & NZRS to INZ DNCL or NZRS or ANY ALL - - - - - INZ NZRS & DNCL - This framework

InternetNZ reserved principles INZ - - INZ or ANY ALL - - - DNCL INZ INZ DNCL - DNCL OA

Structure of the market (SRS) INZ - - INZ or ANY ALL - - - INZ or DNCL INZ INZ INZ - ?

Fee INZ - - DNCL & NZRS ALL DNCL NZRS - - - INZ NZRS - Both OAs

SLA INZ DNCL & NZRS NZRS to DNCL, DNCL to INZ DNCL & NZRS NZRS & DNCL DNCL NZRS - - - DNCL & NZRS NZRS & DNCL - Both OAs

.nz Strategy INZ DNCL & NZRS DNCL & NZRS to INZ DNCL or NZRS or ANY ALL DNCL NZRS - - - DNCL & NZRS DNCL or NZRS - Both SoEs

.nz Identity INZ DNCL & NZRS DNCL & NZRS to INZ DNCL or NZRS or ANY ALL DNCL NZRS - - - DNCL & NZRS DNCL or NZRS - -

.nz Policy Framework INZ DNCL DNCL to INZ DNCL or ANY NZRS or ALL DNCL NZRS - DNCL DNCL DNCL or INZ DNCL or NZRS - DNCL OA

Registry operation (non-SLA) INZ NZRS NZRS to INZ NZRS or ANY DNCL or ALL DNCL NZRS NZRS & DNCL DNCL or NZRS DNCL NZRS NZRS DNCL NZRS OA

DNS operation (non-SLA) INZ NZRS NZRS to INZ NZRS or ANY DNCL or ALL DNCL NZRS NZRS & DNCL DNCL or NZRS DNCL NZRS NZRS DNCL NZRS OA

New services for .nz INZ NZRS NZRS to INZ NZRS or DNCL or ANY ALL DNCL NZRS NZRS & DNCL DNCL DNCL NZRS NZRS DNCL NZRS OA

Registry data INZ NZRS NZRS to INZ NZRS or DNCL or ANY DNCL DNCL NZRS DNCL or NZRS DNCL NZRS NZRS DNCL NZRS OA

DNS data INZ NZRS NZRS to INZ NZRS or ANY DNCL DNCL NZRS DNCL or NZRS DNCL NZRS NZRS DNCL NZRS OA

.nz Marketing Brand INZ NZRS NZRS to INZ NZRS or ANY ALL DNCL NZRS - - NZRS NZRS - -

.nz DNCL Brand INZ DNCL DNCL to INZ DNCL or ANY ALL DNCL NZRS - - DNCL DNCL - -

Registrar compliance DNCL - DNCL to INZ DNCL or ANY NZRS DNCL - DNCL - DNCL DNCL - .nz policies

Registrar authorisation DNCL - DNCL to INZ DNCL or ANY NZRS DNCL NZRS DNCL - DNCL DNCL - .nz policies

Registrar connection NZRS - NZRS to DNCL NZRS or ANY DNCL - NZRS NZRS - NZRS NZRS - NZRS CA

Registrar billing NZRS - ? NZRS or ANY DNCL DNCL NZRS NZRS - NZRS NZRS - NZRS CA

Registrar <-> Registrant security DNCL - DNCL to INZ DNCL or ANY NZRS DNCL NZRS DNCL - DNCL DNCL & NZRS DNCL or NZRS .nz policies

Registrar <-> Registry security NZRS - NZRS to DNCL NZRS or ANY DNCL DNCL NZRS NZRS - NZRS NZRS DNCL NZRS CA

Owner

Delegated 

To Formal Reporting Propose Change Notified Approve Change Implement Document

ICANN AoC INZ - ? ANY ALL - - - - INZ INZ - This framework

ICANN contribution INZ DNCL DNCL to INZ DNCL or ANY ALL - - - - INZ DNCL - This framework

IANA admin contact INZ DNCL DNCL to INZ DNCL or ANY ALL - - - - INZ DNCL - This framework

IANA tech contact INZ NZRS NZRS to INZ NZRS or ANY ALL - - - - INZ NZRS - This framework

APTLD membership INZ DNCL DNCL to INZ ANY ALL - - - - INZ DNCL - This framework

CENTR membership INZ DNCL DNCL to INZ ANY ALL - - - - INZ DNCL - This framework

Owner

Delegated 

To Formal Reporting Initiate Notified

Verify - 

Principles & 

Policy

Verify - 

Technical & 

Commercial Approve Implement

After the fact 

intervention Document

.nz communications campaign DNCL - DNCL to INZ DNCL NZRS DNCL NZRS - - DNCL DNCL ? .nz policies

.nz marketing campaign NZRS - NZRS to INZ NZRS DNCL DNCL NZRS - - NZRS NZRS DNCL .nz policies

Research with registrars ANY - ANY to INZ NZRS or DNCL NZRS or DNCL DNCL NZRS - - NZRS or DNCL NZRS or DNCL ? .nz policies

Research with registrants ANY - ANY to INZ NZRS or DNCL NZRS or DNCL DNCL NZRS - - NZRS or DNCL NZRS or DNCL DNCL .nz policies

Research with public ANY - ANY to INZ NZRS or DNCL NZRS or DNCL DNCL NZRS - - NZRS or DNCL NZRS or DNCL DNCL .nz policies

Change Process

ANY means that any business unit may  do it.  A specific name means that business unit is expected  to do it as part of their normal processes. 

Verify is a hard stop like Approval - if a change doesn't pass verification then it doesn't happen.

We are missing guidelines on how Verification works and when things are Consulted on.

Ownership



 

 

 



 

 

 
24 November 2015 

Jamie Baddeley 
President 
InternetNZ 
PO Box 11 881 
Wellington 
 

Additional staffer for Technical Research 
       
Dear Jamie 
 
In our Statement of Direction and Goals for 2015-16 we noted that we 
had budgeted for an additional staff member for Technical Research 
but would not be employing anyone to that role until we had 
agreement from InternetNZ to us to increase the level of investment 
in Technical Research.  I am now in a position to write to you seeking 
that agreement. 
 
As background, the Technical Research team carries out research 
into various areas including domain names, Internet connectivity and 
use of the Internet in NZ.  All the output of the team is published on 
an open basis allowing anyone to use it for their own research or 
commercial purposes.   
 
Some of this research output is used by other parts of NZRS for both 
operational improvement and business.  For example, the National 
Broadband Map began as a research team project investigating into 
wireless coverage of rural areas.  Another example is the registry 
data quality metrics that are now built into our registrar portal. 
 
The list of research projects that the team are undertaking can be 
categorised into two.  The first category includes active research 
projects all of which are being used by the rest of the company to 
develop new features for .nz or new services: 
 
• Registry data quality metrics 
• ANZSIC coding of the register   
• Domain popularity ranking 



 

 

• Scanning of the .nz zone 
 
The second category is a longer list of inactive projects that have all 
delivered a first stage of output to demonstrate their value but with 
the limited resources of the team are either on hold or only seeing 
very slow progress: 
 
• Network Topology Maps 
• New technique for malware detection using observed queries 
• RPKI Validator 
• Full .nz web scan 
• Domain name registrant classification 
• Modelling of churn within the register 
• String distance registry augmentation 
• Domain labels broken into words 
 
Beyond that there are many more research areas that have the 
potential to deliver value to the NZ Internet community that the 
team is not able to start work on. The team are expecting to support 
the State of the Internet Report that InternetNZ have been planning 
for the last year, which may turn out to have major resource 
requirements. 
 
It is the view of the board that we should increase the resources 
available to the team by employing another researcher so that these 
projects can progress. 
 
We do not expect any adverse financial from this change as this post 
was fully funded in our budget presented with our Statement of 
Direction and Goals and domain name growth is above budget.  
 
Please let me know if we have the agreement of Council to increase 
the resources of the Technical Research team by employing another 
researcher.  Both the CE and I will be available at the next Council 
meeting to answer any queries you may have. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 



 

 

 
Richard Currey 
Chair 

 



 

 

 



 



 

 

 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20165-20176 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for DNCL Page 1 of 6 
 

Statement of Expectations: DNCL 

20165-20176 
 

1. Introduction 
This Statement of Expectations sets out InternetNZ’s expectations for the 2015-
162016-17 year for Domain Name Commission Ltd (DNCL).  

It provides clarity for the company regarding its core role and the functions the 
shareholder expects the company to deliver. As well as a formal communication 
of shareholder expectations, to which the company will be held to account, it is 
also therefore an input to the company’s strategic and business planning.  

As sole shareholder InternetNZ’s interest is in DNCL operating effectively and 
efficiency to achieve its core role and required functions. The detail of how that 
role and those functions are to be provided and the cost of doing so is 
determined by the company, and is to be set out in the company’s Statement of 
Direction and Goals as detailed in section 8. 

This document was finalised by Council on 5 X December 2014 2015 (RN 
110XX/1415). 

 

2.  Strategic Framework 
For 2015-2020 InternetNZ has created a Group Strategic Plan which is being 
finalised at the December 2014 Council meeting. It sets out the overall role of the 
InternetNZ group and assigns lead responsibility for areas of work to different 
units. The plan will beis available in the register of governance documents at 
www.internetnz.nz.  

Of particular relevance to DNCL is strategic Area 1: .nz as a world-class ccTLD 
that meets the needs of the local Internet community. 

The shareholder expects the company to give effect to this area as its core 
strategic imperative. It should however consider the whole strategy as an input to 
its own planning process. 

The more detailed joint strategy guiding the development of .nz is a shared 
responsibility for DNCL and for NZRS. The strategy was jointly developed by both 
companies, and was approved by the Council in June 2015.The more detailed joint 
strategy guiding the development of .nz is a shared responsibility for DNCL and 
for NZRS. The strategy must be jointly developed by both companies, and jointly 
submitted to the Council for comment and then approval from time to time as 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20165-20176 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for DNCL Page 2 of 6 
 

noted in the Group High Level Planning Cycle. 
 

3.  Core and Secondary Roles 
The core role for DNCL is: 

 To operate, maintain, develop and enforce the policy framework for the .nz 
ccTLD, and to monitor & hold accountable NZRS’s performance against 
SLA standards of operation for .nz.  

This description is a brief summary of the role set out for the company in the <.nz 
Framework Ppolicy> (currently in draft, expected to be finalised in early 2016) 
and in the DNCL Operating Agreement. The <.nz policy> will be complete in April 
2015. These documents are, or will soon be, available in the register of governance 
documents at www.internetnz.nz.   

In addition to its primary role, the secondary role for DNCL is: 

 Day to day oversight of the .nz market.  
 

4.  Core functions 
In advancing the company’s core role, the shareholder expects the functions set 
out below to be provided.  

Function Explanation
DNCL 
.nz policy framework Maintain and develop the policy framework that 

sets out how .nz operates, and enforce its 
requirements on relevant parties. 

.nz dispute resolution Provide a service for resolving disputes between 
registrants consistent with the .nz policy 
framework. 

.nz Service Level Agreement  Monitor and develop as required the SLA that 
specifies the service levels required for the 
operation of the SRS and the DNS. 

.nz oversight and assistance Oversee the .nz market and provide support and 
advice for members of the public. 

ALONG WITH NZRS
.nz international representation Consistent with the group international strategy 

and plan, represent .nz at relevant international 
events. 

.nz product development Continue to develop the .nz product offering 
consistent with the group strategy goal 
regarding .nz being a world-class ccTLD. 

 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20165-20176 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for DNCL Page 3 of 6 
 

The shareholder expects that the commencement of new functions, or significant 
changes to the resources applied to the functions set out in this SoE, require 
explicit prior shareholder agreement.  

Such approval could occur through approval of the annual Statement of Direction 
and Goals (SoDaG) where such changes are set out, or on a case by case basis 
through an exchange of letters.  

Consistent with the no-surprises approach outlined below, where changes of this 
sort are contemplated they should be raised early with shareholder. 

Secondary Functions 
In addition to the primary functions set out above, the shareholder expects the 
secondary function/s set out below to be provided. It notes that performance of 
secondary functions must be managed in a manner that does not risk the 
company’s ability to perform its primary functions. 

Function Explanation
DNCL 
Security Provide a resource for the InternetNZ unit to 

contribute to Issues Programme work on 
security matters. 
 

 
As for primary functions, the commencement of new secondary functions, or 
significant changes to the resources applied to the functions set out in this SoE, 
require explicit prior shareholder agreement. 
 

5. Specific tasks group projects in 2015-162016-17 
The shareholder expects the following specific tasks group projects to be 
addressed by the company in the 2015-162016-17 business year, and welcomes 
advice from the company as part of the Statement of Directions and Goals as to 
how these will be progressed in the coming year. 

 Continue Conduct the planned review of the policies related tothe work 
programme involved with rolling out registrations direct at the  second 
level registrations.  

 Conduct with NZRS and InternetNZ a full review and debrief of the 
registrations direct at the second level project.  

 Develop and share the company’s approach to succession planning at the 
board and management level, to provide assurance as to the resilience of 
the company.Work with the shareholder to revise and update the 
Operating Agreement. 

 Work with the shareholder to review group policies related to reporting. 
  



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20165-20176 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for DNCL Page 4 of 6 
 

 Work with the shareholder to re-establish common premises for all 
business units.  
 

6. Financial Requirements 
The shareholder expects efficiency to be a key goal for the company. The most 
efficient and effective use of resources is important. By minimising costs 
consistent with delivering required functions, the company will assist the 
shareholder with maximising its ability to pursue its objectives, and will help give 
the public confidence that the group is a responsible steward for .nz.  

The shareholder notes the following factors in respect of financial goals, practice 
and information for and from the company: 

 Manage expenditure so as to maintain or reduce nominal expenditure from 
2014-15 levels in 2015-162016-17 and beyond once registrations direct at the 
second level project work is complete. 

 Return any cash in excess of reserves to the shareholder following the 
conclusion of each financial year. 

Council generally expects subsidiaries to: 

A. adopt sound organisational and financial management practices so as to 
safeguard and enhance InternetNZ’s investment in the company; 

B. operate within the financial and operational scope of the Statement of 
Direction and Goals as agreed with InternetNZ while meeting the 
requirements of specific company policies and relevant provisions of 
Operating Agreements; and 

C. provide meaningful output and financial information reporting against the 
Statement of Direction and Goals (including changes to plans and 
priorities) to facilitate the monitoring of the organisation’s performance. 
 

7. General Expectations 
The shareholder’s vision for the group is that it is highly collaborative, committed 
to working together and to building a vibrant, collegial and inclusive culture to 
maximise the group’s success. Council, subsidiary Boards and all Chief Executives 
have an obligation to work together in leading the ongoing realisation of this 
vision. 

Consistent with this vision, the shareholder expects subsidiaries to: 

A. continue to maintain a high standard of corporate governance; 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20165-20176 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for DNCL Page 5 of 6 
 

B. maintain an open and transparent approach to their activity, and operate a 
no-surprises policy across the group;  

C. operate consistent with established group strategy and policies, including 
by bringing group policies into effect in their own policy frameworks where 
required and practical, as well as collaborating with other units across the 
group to develop and implement group strategy and policies; 

D. adopt a sound risk management strategy for all areas of their activities, 
including the timely reporting of critical operating and financial risks to 
InternetNZ, and contribution to the maintenance of the Group Risk 
Register; 

E. ensure that there are effective and productive day-to-day working 
relationships between all units and actively explore and implement ways to 
achieve greater co-operation and collaboration between units to the 
benefit of the wider Internet community; and 

F. operate in accordance with InternetNZ’s core values – openness and 
transparency, leadership, ethical behaviour & stewardship and a can-do 
attitude. 
 

8. Statement of Direction and Goals 
The shareholder requires the company to prepare and present a Statement of 
Direction and Goals (SoDaG) for the 2015-162016-17 year. The purpose of the 
SoDaG is to set out how the company intends to meet the expectations set out in 
this document. 

The core components of the SoDaG are as follows: 

A. an outline of the company’s long term strategy; 

B. an outline of the environmental factors that feed into the company’s 
strategic planning; 

C. an outline of the key priorities and projects that the company has identified 
for 2015-162016-17, including those set out in this Statement;  

D. an outline of proposed measures by which the shareholder can judge the 
company’s performance against the requirements set out in this Statement; 
and 

E. a proposed budget for the 2015-162016-17 financial year, as well as draft 
budgets for 20176-187 and 20187-198 (subject to adjustments for 20154-165 
year end results).  



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20165-20176 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for DNCL Page 6 of 6 
 

The SoDaG must be presented to the Council as soon as convenient, and no later 
than its April May 20165 meeting.  

In keeping with the conclusions of the Financial Flows review of the InternetNZ 
Group, theThe shareholder requires the company’s SoDaG to be agreed with the 
Council.  

This is the key mechanism by which Council ensures that the scope of activity and 
the resources deployed by the company are in keeping with its expectations. 
Early discussions with the shareholder about core priorities and scope of financial 
requirements are encouraged. 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20156-20167 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for NZRS Page 1 of 6 
 

Statement of Expectations: NZRS 

20152016-20162017 
 

1. Introduction 
This Statement of Expectations sets out InternetNZ’s expectations for the 
20152016-176 year for New Zealand Domain Name Registry Ltd, trading as NZRS 
(NZRS).  

It provides clarity for the company regarding its core role and the functions the 
shareholder expects the company to deliver. As well as a formal communication 
of shareholder expectations, to which the company will be held to account, it is 
also therefore an input to the company’s strategic and business planning.  

As sole shareholder InternetNZ’s interest is in NZRS operating effectively and 
efficiency to achieve its core role and required functions. The detail of how that 
role and those functions are to be provided and the cost of doing so is 
determined by the company, and is to be set out in the company’s Statement of 
Direction and Goals as detailed in section 8. 

This document was finalised by Council on 5 X December 201514 (RN XX111/1514). 

 

2.  Strategic Framework 
For 2015-2020 InternetNZ has created a Group Strategic Plan which is being 
finalised at the December 2014 Council meeting. It sets out the overall role of the 
InternetNZ group and assigns lead responsibility for areas of work to different 
units. The plan will beis available in the register of governance documents at 
www.internetnz.nz.  

Of particular relevance to NZRS is strategic Area 1: .nz as a world-class ccTLD 
that meets the needs of the local Internet community.  

The shareholder expects the company to give effect to this area as its core 
strategic imperative. It should however consider the whole strategy as an input to 
its own planning process. In particular, given the company’s secondary role 
strategic Area 5: Business development and diversification will be of interest. 

The more detailed joint strategy guiding the development of .nz is a shared 
responsibility for DNCL and for NZRS. The strategy must bewas jointly developed 
by both companies, and was approved by the Council in June 2015. jointly 
submitted to the Council for comment and then approval from time to time as 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20156-20167 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for NZRS Page 2 of 6 
 

noted in the Group High Level Planning Cycle. 
 

3.  Core and Secondary Roles 
The core role for NZRS is: 

 To operate, maintain and develop the Shared Registry System and the .nz 
Domain Name System as part of the .nz ccTLD. 

This description is a brief summary of the role set out for the company in the <.nz 
Framework Ppolicy> (currently in draft, expected to be finalised in early 2016) 
and in the NZRS Operating Agreement. The <.nz policy> will be complete in April 
2015. These documents are, or will soon be, available in the register of governance 
documents at www.internetnz.nz.   

In addition to its primary role, the secondary role for NZRS is: 

 Promotion and marketing of the .nz product.  
 Technical research. 
 Assist the shareholder with business development strategy, policy and 

implementation. 
 

4.  Core functions 
In advancing the company’s core role, the shareholder expects the functions set 
out below to be provided.  

Function Explanation
NZRS 
Shared Registry System (SRS) Maintain and develop the Shared Registry 

System, the core infrastructure of the .nz 
register. 

Domain Name System (DNS) Maintain and develop the core DNS 
infrastructure for .nz. 

.nz marketing and promotion Develop the .nz product brand and promote it 
so as to increase awareness of and registration 
of .nz domain names. 

ALONG WITH DNCL
.nz international representation Consistent with the group international strategy 

and plan, represent .nz at relevant international 
events. 

.nz product development Continue to develop the .nz product offering 
consistent with the group strategy goal 
regarding .nz being a world-class ccTLD. 

 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20156-20167 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for NZRS Page 3 of 6 
 

The shareholder expects that the commencement of new functions, or significant 
changes to the resources applied to the functions set out in this SoE, require 
explicit prior shareholder agreement.  

Such approval could occur through approval of the annual Statement of Direction 
and Goals (SoDaG) where such changes are set out, or on a case by case basis 
through an exchange of letters.  

Consistent with the no-surprises approach outlined below, where changes of this 
sort are contemplated they should be raised early with shareholder. 

Secondary Functions 
In addition to the primary functions set out above, the shareholder expects the 
secondary function/s set out below to be provided. It notes that performance of 
secondary functions must be managed in a manner that does not risk the 
company’s ability to perform its primary functions. 

Function Explanation
NZRS 
Technical Research Maintain a technical research capacity which 

contributes authoritative information about the 
New Zealand Internet or Internet technologies, 
and coordinate its work programme with 
InternetNZ’s Internet Issues programme. 
 

Business Development Be the lead unit in advancing business 
development priorities, consistent with the 
agreed Group Business Development Strategy 
and Policy. 
 

 
As for primary functions, the commencement of new secondary functions, or 
significant changes to the resources applied to the functions set out in this SoE, 
require explicit prior shareholder agreement. 
 

5. Specific tasks group projects in 20152016-1617 
The shareholder expects the following specific tasks group projects to be 
addressed by the company in the 20165-176 business year, and welcomes advice 
from the company as part of the Statement of Directions and Goals as to how 
these will be progressed in the coming year. 

 Continue the work programme involved with rolling out registrations direct 
at the second level.  

 Conduct with DNCL and InternetNZ a full review and debrief of the 
registrations direct at the second level project.  



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20156-20167 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for NZRS Page 4 of 6 
 

 Develop and share the company’s approach to succession planning at the 
board and management level, to provide assurance as to the resilience of 
the company. Work with the shareholder to revise and update the 
Operating Agreement. 

 Work with the shareholder to review group policies related to reporting. 
 Work with the shareholder to re-establish common premises for all units.  
 Identify for discussion with the shareholder any steps it could take to allow 

for a higher return to be realised on funds held by the company. 
 Assist the InternetNZ business unit with the development of a Group 

Business Development Strategy.  
 

6. Financial Requirements 
The shareholder expects efficiency to be a key goal for the company. The most 
efficient and effective use of resources is important. By minimising costs 
consistent with delivering required functions, the company will assist the 
shareholder with maximising its ability to pursue its objectives, and will help give 
the public confidence that the group is a responsible steward for .nz.  

The shareholder notes the following factors in respect of financial goals, practice 
and information for and from the company: 

 Achieve an EBIT ratio of 40% in 20165-176 in respect of .nz operations. 
o This ratio applies to revenue from registrations of .nz domain names 
o The costs of the management fee to DNCL are excluded from 

calculating this target, as that is outside the company’s control. 
o 25% of the costs of the technical research function should be 

included in calculating this target, as research is required for the 
ongoing development of the company’s core functions. 

 Achieve an EBIT ratio of 30% by the end of the 2015-2017 period in respect 
of new business development opportunities pursued by the company. 

o This ratio applies to all other revenue from commercial operations. 
o 25% of the costs of the technical research function should be 

included in calculating this target, as research is required in 
developing new business opportunities, products and so on. 

 Retain a maximum exposure of $400,000 for business development 
purposes (in terms of direct costs) and utilise this consistent with group 
strategy and policy requirements. 

 Aim for a dividend of $3.806m to the shareholder in 20165-176 (subject to 
finalisation of the company’s growth forecasts and 20165-176 budget). 

 Return any cash in excess of reserves to the shareholder following the 
conclusion of each financial year. 

Council generally expects subsidiaries to: 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20156-20167 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for NZRS Page 5 of 6 
 

A. adopt sound organisational and financial management practices so as to 
safeguard and enhance InternetNZ’s investment in the company; 

B. operate within the financial and operational scope of the Statement of 
Direction and Goals as agreed with InternetNZ while meeting the 
requirements of specific company policies and relevant provisions of 
Operating Agreements; and 

C. provide meaningful output and financial information reporting against the 
Statement of Direction and Goals (including changes to plans and 
priorities) to facilitate the monitoring of the organisation’s performance. 
 

7. General Expectations 
The shareholder’s vision for the group is that it is highly collaborative, committed 
to working together and to building a vibrant, collegial and inclusive culture to 
maximise the group’s success. Council, subsidiary Boards and all Chief Executives 
have an obligation to work together in leading the ongoing realisation of this 
vision. 

Consistent with this vision, the shareholder expects subsidiaries to: 

A. continue to maintain a high standard of corporate governance; 

B. maintain an open and transparent approach to their activity, and operate a 
no-surprises policy across the group;  

C. operate consistent with established group strategy and policies, including 
by bringing group policies into effect in their own policy frameworks where 
required, as well as collaborating with other units across the group to 
develop and implement group strategy and policies; 

D. adopt a sound risk management strategy for all areas of their activities, 
including the timely reporting of critical operating and financial risks to 
InternetNZ, and contribution to the maintenance of the Group Risk 
Register; 

E. ensure that there are effective and productive day-to-day working 
relationships between all units and actively explore and implement ways to 
achieve greater co-operation and collaboration between units to the 
benefit of the wider Internet community; and 

F. operate in accordance with InternetNZ’s core values – openness and 
transparency, leadership, ethical behaviour & stewardship and a can-do 
attitude. 
 



   
 

 

InternetNZ 
20156-20167 DRAFT Statement of Expectations for NZRS Page 6 of 6 
 

8. Statement of Direction and Goals 
The shareholder requires the company to prepare and present a Statement of 
Direction and Goals (SoDaG) for the 2015-16 year. The purpose of the SoDaG is to 
set out how the company intends to meet the expectations set out in this 
document. 

 

The core components of the SoDaG are as follows: 

A. an outline of the company’s long term strategy; 

B. an outline of the environmental factors that feed into the company’s 
strategic planning; 

C. an outline of the key priorities and projects that the company has identified 
for 20152016-1617, including those set out in this Statement;  

D. an outline of proposed measures by which the shareholder can judge the 
company’s performance against the requirements set out in this Statement; 
and 

E. a proposed budget for the 20152016-16 17 financial year, as well as draft 
budgets for 20162017-17 18 and 20172018-18 19 (subject to adjustments for 
20154-165 year end results).  

 
The SoDaG must be presented to the Council as soon as convenient, and no later 
than its April May 20165 meeting.  

In keeping with the conclusions of the Financial Flows review of the InternetNZ 
Group, theThe shareholder requires the company’s SoDaG to be agreed with the 
Council.  

This is the key mechanism by which Council ensures that the scope of activity and 
the resources deployed by the company are in keeping with its expectations. 
Early discussions with the shareholder about core priorities and scope of financial 
requirements are encouraged. 

 

 



 

 

 
30 September 2015 

Jamie Baddeley 
President 
InternetNZ 
PO Box 11 881 
Wellington 
         

Dear Jamie 

Re: 2nd Quarter 2015 – 2016 Report  

We enclose our second quarterly report of the 2015 - 2016 year; the 
quarter ended 30 September 2015.  The report, which I submit on 
behalf of the Board, consists of the summarised management 
accounts and a commentary on financial, operational, and strategic 
issues in relation to the company’s performance.  There is nothing in 
the report that we regard as confidential. 

This report meets the requirement of the Reporting Policy 
incorporated in the July 2008 INZ - NZRS Operating Agreement. 

All reporting on .nz is found in our joint report with DNCL. 

 

1.  Financial 

Enclosed are Statements of: 

• Financial performance; and 

• Financial position 

These statements are based on our management accounts for the 
quarter.   

As requested our financial performance statements include a 
breakdown of expenditure by activity. 

The net profit before tax of $965,921 for the quarter was 10.0% 
above the budgeted $874,353.  

Domain name growth was above budget for the quarter.  Growth 
was 7,006 versus a budgeted 1,531.  July’s net growth was 3,544, 
August’s net growth was 2,472 and September’s net growth was 
990.  

 



 

 

Actual domain name fee income for the quarter was above budget 
by $26,269 (actual $2,457,309 versus budgeted $2,431,040). 

Expenses for the quarter were $147,343 below budget (actual 
$2,692,028 versus budgeted $2,544,685) due mainly to the timing of 
expenditure. 

The company’s liquidity ratio was met. 

$1,570,058 was paid in dividends during this quarter. 

 

2.  Other Key Strategic and Operational Activities 

Along with the rest of the group, NZRS moved to new office 
premises in this quarter. 

 

3.  Business/service development 

In this quarter we launched the National Broadband Map and our 
Internet Data Portal. 

 

4.  New report section 

In response to a request made by the InternetNZ CE at the last 
Council meeting, our quarterly reports will now include a section on 
Activity Based Expenditure.  This shows expenditure against budget 
for the core activity of .nz and secondary activities of .nz marketing, 
technical research and business development. 

As requested the costs for each activity include specific costs and 
shared costs apportioned on a head count basis. These are shown as 
separate columns on the new report. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Richard Currey 

Chair 

 





 

 

 

NZRS Ltd 

Financial Statements 

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015 

 

 

 

  

 

Statement of Financial Performance 

 

 

Balance Sheet 

 

 

Statement of Cash Flows 

 

 

 

 

 







Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance Last Year Budget LY Actual

Cash Flows From Operating Activities Year To Date

Cash Was Provided From:

Registry Fees Received 2,810,341 3,048,544 (238,203) 6,116,153 6,500,088 (383,935) 5,146,407 12,561,057 10,647,837 

Other Receipts 122,947 98,248 24,699 186,218 197,188 (10,970) 147,124 396,995 303,295 

2,933,287 3,146,792 (213,505) 6,302,371 6,697,276 (394,905) 5,293,531 12,958,052 10,951,132 

Cash Was Distributed To:

Payments to Suppliers and Employees 1,587,075 1,614,860 (27,785) 3,179,776 3,221,963 (42,187) 2,971,393 6,446,308 6,148,484 

Net Taxation Paid - - - - - - - - - 

Net Dividend Paid 1,570,058 1,570,058 - 1,570,058 1,570,058 - 1,355,776 4,170,058 2,755,776 

Net GST Paid 73,743 155,563 (81,820) 283,911 430,211 (146,300) 87,861 894,611 305,525 

3,230,876 3,340,481 (109,605) 5,033,745 5,222,232 (188,487) 4,415,029 11,510,977 9,209,784 

Net Cashflows from Operating (297,590)  (193,689)  (103,900)  1,268,625  1,475,044  (206,418)  878,502  1,447,075  1,741,348  

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash was Provided From:

Share Capital -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

- - - - - - - - - 

Cash was Distributed To:

Repayment of Redeemable Preference Shares

Inland Revenue Use of Money Interest - - - - - - - - - 

Net Cash flows from Financing -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash was Provided From:

Fitout Contribution - - - - - - - - - 

Cash was Distributed To:

Purchase of Fixed Assets & Formation Expenses 52,765 140,588 (87,823) 82,509 234,312 (151,803) 592,660 515,488 899,518 

Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (52,765)  (140,588)  87,823  (82,509)  (234,312)  151,803  (592,660)  (515,488)  (899,518)  

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held (350,355) (334,277) (16,077) 1,186,117 1,240,732 (54,615) 285,842 931,587 841,831 

Plus Opening Cash Balance 10,495,524 10,534,062 (38,538) 8,959,053 8,959,053 - 8,099,572 8,959,053 8,099,572 

Closing Cash Carried Forward 10,145,170  10,199,785  (54,615)  10,145,170  10,199,785  (54,615)  8,385,413  9,890,640  8,941,403  

Closing Cash Comprises

ASB Bank Cheque Account 334,677 - - 334,677 - - 533,580 9,890,640 918,966 

ASB Bank Call Account 907,154 - - 907,154 - - 503,576 - 1,286,395 

Term Deposits 8,919,150 - - 8,919,150 - - 7,374,749 - 6,741,486 

ASB Credit Cards (15,811) - - (15,811) - - (26,492) - (5,444) 

Total Cash Held 10,145,170  10,199,785  (54,615)  10,145,170  10,199,785  (54,615)  8,385,413  9,890,640  8,941,403  

Plus ASB Credit Cards 15,811 - - 15,811 - - 26,492 - 5,444 

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 10,160,981  10,199,785  (54,615)  10,160,981  10,199,785  (54,615)  8,411,905  9,890,640  8,946,847  

NZRS Ltd

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015

This Quarter Year to Date Full Year



Specific to this Apportionment of Total Specific to this Apportionment of Total

Activity Shared Costs Activity Shared Costs

.NZ

Actual 1,096,790 210,647 1,307,437 2,182,419 446,984 2,629,403 

Budget 1,114,214 236,470 1,350,684 2,237,763 472,696 2,710,459 

Variance 17,424  25,823  43,247  55,344  25,712  81,056  

.NZ Marketing

Actual 141,711 25,055 166,766 272,898 54,598 327,496 

Budget 133,289 25,863 159,152 266,841 50,106 316,947 

Variance (8,422)  808  (7,615)  (6,058)  (4,491)  (10,549)  

Technical Research

Actual 77,182 32,284 109,465 154,908 70,848 225,756 

Budget 93,622 38,777 132,399 187,244 77,513 264,758 

Variance 16,440  6,493  22,934  32,336  6,665  39,001  

Business Development

Actual 972 8,338 9,310 972 23,188 24,160 

Budget 1,275 11,425 12,700 2,550 22,851 25,401 

Variance 303  3,087  3,390  1,578  (338)  1,240  

Total

Actual 1,316,655 276,324 1,592,979 2,611,197 595,618 3,206,816 

Budget 1,342,400 312,535 1,654,935 2,694,398 623,166 3,317,564 

Variance 25,745  36,211  61,956  83,201  27,548  110,748  

This Quarter Year to Date

NZRS Ltd

Activity Based Expenditure Report

For the Quarter Ended 30 September 2015



 
December 2015  
 
Jamie Baddeley 
President, InternetNZ 
 
Dear Jamie, 
 
Second Quarter 2015/16 report  
 
This report includes DNCL’s quarterly Profit and Loss Statement, information regarding 
DNCL Security and Training and an update regarding succession planning. If Council 
requires any further information please let me know so I can include it in future reports. 
 
 

July - Sept 2015 Year-to-Date 
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance

INCOME     
Authorisation Fees 3,000 0 3,000 6,000 3,000 3,000
DRS Complaint Fees 14,000 12,000 2,000 20,000 20,000 0
Management Fees 467,460 467,460 0 934,920 934,920 0
Income - Other 0 0 0 0 0 0
Interest Income 8,497 1,900 6,597 9,832 3,800 6,032
Total Income 492,957 481,360 11,597 970,752 961,720 9,032

  
EXPENDITURE   
DNCL Board  34,533 43,439 8,906 70,676 86,874 16,198
Communications 2,017 18,752 16,735 4,567 37,500 32,933
Dispute Resolution 
Services 22,200 21,687 (513) 26,875 39,374 12,499

DNC Activities 3,764 6,875 3,111 5,002 13,749 8,747
International 26,805 35,000 8,195 38,165 98,000 59,835
Office and 
Administration 47,562 48,411 849 96,911 98,112 1,201

Personnel and Staff 253,249 265,720 12,471 518,619 525,752 7,133
Professional Services 18,192 21,000 2,808 57,206 70,498 13,292
Total Expenditure 408,322 460,884 52,562 818,022 969,859 151,837

  
Depreciation 9,464 13,375 3,911 18,746 26,750 8,004

  
Net Profit/Loss 75,172 7,101 68,071 133,984 (34,889) 168,873

 
 
Variances against budget for this quarter reflect the budget being evenly distributed 
across the year whereas the activities undertaken are not so linear. Expenditure is 
expected to increase under communications with the upcoming WHOIS consultation.  
 
 
 



Security and Training 
 
In August, a three hour training and overview session was provided to the 
Medsafe/MoH investigation team on Domain Names, DNS and Internet Investigations.  
This is the second time the entry level course has been run and it was well received.  
 
Throughout the quarter DNCL provided co-ordination and communications support for 
the inaugural InfoSec Awards New Zealand (iSANZ) which are to take place in 
Wellington on the 8th of December 2015. 
 
The NZITF continued the development of the Cyber Security Incident Response Team 
(CSIRT).  This team will be unique in New Zealand with a focus on supporting small and 
medium sized private sector companies and non-profit organisations. This initiative has 
been supported by the InternetNZ group.  
 
Succession planning 
 
The Board of DNCL has approved a succession plan for the company. It is intended to 
identify options and actions for ensuring DNCL continues to operate effectively in the 
case of staff absences or loss of key personnel. This plan will be continually reviewed to 
ensure that all required actions have been undertaken and that it remains current and 
relevant. 
 
The Board of DNCL recommends that the Council of InternetNZ receives this report.  
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. 
 
 
Yours sincerely  

 
David Farrar 
Chair, DNCL  



 

.nz Quarterly Report 
Second Quarter ended  30 September 2015 

 
 
Introduction 
 
This is the second joint .nz quarterly report for the 2015/16 financial year.  Council 
is asked for feedback on this report and what changes, if any, Council would like to 
see for reports for the remainder of the year.  It is the intention of DNCL and NZRS 
to continue to provide a joint report to prevent the ongoing duplication of .nz 
information.  There is nothing in this report that is confidential. 
 
1. Global Domain Name Environment 
 
At the end of the quarter a total of 298.4m domain names had been registered 
among all TLDs. A further breakdown of this figure is provided in the table below:   
 

Domain name registrations as at 30 September 
2015 

ccTLDs  137.2m 
gTLDs (pre 2012)  153.7m 
gTLDs (post 2012)  7.7m 

 
The number of delegated TLDs passed 1,000 in July and, at the end of September, 
751 new TLDs had been delegated as part of the ICANN 2012 application process.  
 
There are currently 10,295 .kiwi registrations – down from a high of approximately 
12,000 after their first anniversary.   
 
2. Activities 

 
a) .nz Promotion and Marketing 
 
During the quarter, two .nz infographics – ‘where the money goes’ and ‘who owns 
.nz’ – were finalised and promoted via social media channels. A1 printed versions 
have found a home in the Wellington boardroom.  
 
Communications planning was a feature of the quarter, with plans developed for 
DNSSEC and DNCL’s .nz WHOIS review. The DNSSEC plan will be put into action 
following the DNSSEC go-live of .govt.nz. The WHOIS plan is underway now – 
promoting the review’s second public consultation.  
 
 
 



During this quarter NZRS conducted a number of surveys: 

• Registrar Satisfaction Survey 
• Registrant Survey 
• Reseller Surveys 
• Colmar Brunton Public Research of consumers and business 

 
Survey results will be presented at the November 2015 Registrar Conference – 
which is to be held in Wellington this year.  
 
Media enquiries concerning registrations direct at the Second Level, a .nz domain 
locked due to a court order, and a Dispute Resolution Service expert decision were 
received and responded to by DNCL.  
 
A suite of marketing assets was made available by NZRS for registrars to use when 
communicating with their customers about yearly .nz renewals. NZRS also began a 
new advertising campaign, underpinned by the strapline ‘whatever your business, 
we’re behind you’. Advertisements appeared online, including on Google Display, 
Trade Me and Facebook. Advertisements also appeared offline, on bus backs and 
billboards in Auckland, Wellington and Christchurch. Associated sponsored 
editorial featured in Retail Magazine, Tech Day and Biz Buzz.      
 
b) Registrations at the Second Level  
 
A total of 550 conflicts were resolved between 1 July and the end of September.   
 
Total Resolved Statistics  
 

 April May June Total for 
Q1 July Aug Sept Total for 

Q2 

Conflicts  
Resolved 219 185 209 613 175 210 165 550 

 
 
c) International Engagement 

 
• The DNC spent time with the Vanuatu Telecommunications and Radio 

Communications Regulator to assist them in the next steps towards 
implementing a shared registry system for .vu.   
 

d) .nz Policy  
 

• Following a public consultation, the DNCL Board has approved the new 
policy framework for .nz.   Under the new policy framework, the old list of 
14 .nz policies has been simplified down to four .nz policies - The Policy 
Development Policy, the Principles and Responsibilities Policy, the 
Operations Policy and the Dispute Resolution Service Policy. The new Policy 
Framework will come into effect on 9 November 2015. 

 



e) Other matters 
 

• A meeting of the DNCL Board was held in August with minutes available at 
http://dnc.org.nz/story/minutes-dncl-board-meeting-14-august-
2015?m=309 

 
3. .nz data  
 
a) Domain Names 
 
The size of the register against NZRS budgeted growth is shown in  the chart 
below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

450,000

475,000

500,000

525,000

550,000

575,000

600,000

625,000

650,000

675,000

700,000

A
p

r-
12

Ju
n

-1
2

A
u

g
-1

2

O
ct

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

F
eb

-1
3

A
p

r-
13

Ju
n

-1
3

A
u

g
-1

3

O
ct

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

F
eb

-1
4

A
p

r-
14

Ju
n

-1
4

A
u

g
-1

4

O
ct

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

F
eb

-1
5

A
p

r-
15

Ju
n

-1
5

A
u

g
-1

5

O
ct

-1
5

D
ec

-1
5

F
eb

-1
6

Register Size Budget Active Domains



The actual growth against NZRS budgeted growth is shown in the chart below: 
 

 
 
 
The averge term (average number of months a domain is registered/renewed for) 
is shown in the chart below: 
 

 

-10,000

-5,000

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000
A

p
r-

12

Ju
n

-1
2

A
u

g
-1

2

O
ct

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

F
eb

-1
3

A
p

r-
13

Ju
n

-1
3

A
u

g
-1

3

O
ct

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

F
eb

-1
4

A
p

r-
14

Ju
n

-1
4

A
u

g
-1

4

O
ct

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

F
eb

-1
5

A
p

r-
15

Ju
n

-1
5

A
u

g
-1

5

O
ct

-1
5

D
ec

-1
5

F
eb

-1
6

Growth vs Budget Net growth per month Monthly budget

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

A
p

r-
12

Ju
n

-1
2

A
ug

-1
2

O
ct

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

F
eb

-1
3

A
p

r-
13

Ju
n

-1
3

A
ug

-1
3

O
ct

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

F
eb

-1
4

A
p

r-
14

Ju
n

-1
4

A
ug

-1
4

O
ct

-1
4

D
ec

-1
4

F
eb

-1
5

A
p

r-
15

Ju
n

-1
5

A
ug

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

Average Term Average months per create
Average months per renewal



The breakdown of domain name growth by second level is noted in the table 
below: 
 

  Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 

.nz 97,940 100,974 101,936 

.ac.nz 2,217 2,217 2,230 

.co.nz 478,997 478,533 479,265 

.cri.nz 7 7 7 

.geek.nz 1,127 1,106 1,095 

.gen.nz 1,262 1,257 1,248 

.govt.nz 1,025 1,023 1,021 

.health.nz 215 219 219 

.iwi.nz 92 93 92 

.kiwi.nz 6,309 6,266 5,711 

.maori.nz 984 973 991 

.mil.nz 31 32 32 

.net.nz 26,884 26,968 26,837 

.org.nz 28,295 28,189 28,156 

.parliament.nz 10 10 10 

.school.nz 3,528 3,528 3,535 

Total 648,923 651,395 652,385 

Growth over previous 
month 

3,544 2,472 990 

 
 
Over the quarter, .nz domain names have increased from 645,379 to 652,385 – a 
net increase of 7,006 or 1.09%. This compares with growth of 15,033 or 2.65% in 
the same quarter last year.  
 
b) Registrars 
 

Registrars authorised 89 

Registrars connected 86 

 
 
Number connected during the quarter: 0    
Number authorised during the quarter: 0   
Number de-authorised during the quarter:0   
 

The following chart shows the spread of registrars across the level of domain name 
registrations: 
 



 
 
 
The following chart shows the number of registrars (excluding the DNC) 
connected to the SRS: 
 

 
 
 
 
 



4. Registry Performance 
 
a. SRS Validation Error 
 
In early August, an SRS validation error allowed a .nz name to be registered that 
exceeded the maximum allowed number of characters at the third level of the 
name. Under .nz policy, the maximum length of each name element is 63 
characters.  
 
The domain was rejected by the DNS zone build validation. The domain was not 
included in NZRS’ zone push to the name servers and was subsequently cancelled. 
A change to the SRS has been applied to resolve the validation issue. 
 
SLA targets achieved for July, August and September 2015. 
 
SRS, DNS and WHOIS availability is noted in the table below: 
 
    

                           
David Farrar                 Richard Currey 
Chair, DNCL       Chair, NZRS  

System SLA % Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 

SRS 99.90% 100 100 100 

DNS 100% 100 100 100 

Whois 99.90% 100 100 100 



 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

     

 

 



 

 

     

 

 



 

 

 



  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Font: Gotham Light, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Space

Before:  7 pt, After:  3 pt, Line

spacing:  1.5 lines, Numbered + Level:

1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … +

Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned

at:  0.63 cm + Indent at:  1.27 cm

Formatted: Font: Gotham Light, 11 pt



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Font: Gotham Light, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Gotham Light, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Gotham Light, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Gotham Light, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Gotham Light, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Italic,

Font color: Auto

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  1.27

cm, Space Before:  7 pt, After:  3 pt



  

 



 

 

 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

 



 

3 | P a g e  

 

 



 

 

 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 



 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 



 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



2020 2020 Communications Trust

2TLD Second Level Domain

3TLD Third Level Domain 

ACCC Australian Competition & Consumer Commission

ACTA Anti-Counterfeiting Trade Agreement

ADA Australian Digital Alliance

ANZIAs Australia New Zealand Internet Awards

APEC Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation

APIA Asia Pacific Internet Association

APNIC Asia Pacific Network Information Center (RIR for the Asia Pacific region)

APRICOT Asia Pacific Regional Internet Conference on Operational Technologies

APTLD
Asia Pacific Top Level Domains Associations (organisation for ccTLD registries in Asia 

Pacific region)

auDA .au Domain Administration Ltd (Australian equivalent of DNCL)

BCOP Best Current Operational Practices

BIM Brief to Incoming Minister

CCANZ Creative Commons

ccNSO County Code Names Supporting Organisations

ccTLD Country Code Top Level Domain (such as .nz for New Zealand, .uk for United Kingdom)

CCWG-

Accountability
Cross Community Working Group on Enhancing ICANN Accountability 

CDMA Code Division Multiple Access (server) (a means to transmit bits of information)

CFH Crown Fibre Holdings

CIRA Canadian Internet Registry Authority (operators of the .ca ccTLD)

CSIRT Computer Security Incident Response Team

DHB District Health Boards

DIDO Distributed-Input Distributed-Output (wireless protocol system)

DNCL Domain Name Commission Limited

DNS Domain Name System

DNSSEC DNS Security (adds security to the Domain Name System)

DSLAM Digital Subscriber Line Access Multiplier

DRS Dispute Resolution Service

FTTH Fibre To The Home

GAC Government Advisory Committee

GCSN Greater Christchurch Schools Network Trust

Glossary of Terminology

Page 1 of 3



Glossary of Terminology

GNSO Generic Name Supporting Organisation (makes recommendations re gTLD to ICANN)

gTLD Generic Top Level Domain (such as .com / .edu)

HDC Harmful Digital Communications

IANA Internet Assigned Numbers Authority

ICANN Internet Corporation for Assigned Names and Numbers

ICG IANA Stewardship Transition Coordination Group

ICT Information and Communications Technologies

IGF Internet Governance Forum

ISOC Internet Society

ISPANZ Internet Service Provider Association of New Zealand

ITAC Internet Technical Advisory Committee

ITU International Telecommunications Union

ITR International Telecommunications Regulations

LFC Local Fibre Company

MAG Multistakeholder Advisory Group

MBIE Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment

MTR Mobile Termination Rates

NCSG Non-Commercial Stakeholders Group (committee under ICANN’s GNSO)

NTIA
U.S. Commerce Department’s National Telecommunications and Information 

Administration

NZITF New Zealand Internet Task Force 

NZNOG New Zealand Network Operators Group

OECD Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development

OFDM Optical Frequency Division Multiplexing

PAG Policy Advisory Group

PBE Public Benefit Entity

PIP Pacific Internet Partners (group revived by Keith to help IGF)

RBI Rural Broadband Initiative

RIR Regional Internet Registry

STD Standard Terms Determination

TCF Telecommunications Carriers’ Forum

TLD Top Level Domain

TPP Trans-Pacific Partnership

TPPA Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreeement

TSO Telecommunications Services Obligation

Page 2 of 3



Glossary of Terminology

TUANZ Telecommunications Users Association of New Zealand

UBA Unbundled Bitstream Access

UCLL Unbundled Copper Local Loop

UFB Ultra Fast Broadband

WSA Wholesale Services Agreement

W3C World Wide Web Consortium

Page 3 of 3



 



 



 

 

 

 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 

o 


	2015-12-Council-papers
	0.0 Agenda Council Meeting December 2015 (FINAL) - revised 3.12.2015
	1.4 Councillors' Declaration  of Interest - Dec 2015
	1.5 2015-10-10-Council-minutes-(to-be-ratified)
	1.6 Action Register review
	1.6 Action Register review
	BLANK PAGE Landscape

	1.7 Membership report - Dec2015 (final)
	1.8 Evote ratification - Dec2015 meeting (final)
	1.8 Evote ratification - Dec2015 meeting (final)
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	2.1 2015-12-02 Group Strategy Day Summary
	2.2 2015-12-02 Activity Planning 2016-17 Focus Areas
	2.2 2015-12-02 Activity Planning 2016-17 Focus Areas
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	3.1 2015-12-03-2016-17Budget-Paper
	3.1 2015-12-03-2016-17Budget-Paper
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	3.3 2015-12-02-Confidential-Council-documents
	3.4 NetHui 2016 Approach
	3.5 Strategic Partnerships Framework
	3.5 Strategic Partnerships Framework
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	4.1 2015-12-CEO-report
	4.2.1 2015-12-01 Internet Issues Report - December 2015 Council
	4.2.2a Community Programme Report - December 2015 Council
	4.2.2b Grants reporting spreadsheet (for attachment in Mgmt report)
	4.2.3a 2015-12-01 International Management report December Council
	4.2.3b 2015-11-ICANN-54-Dublin-Joint-Report
	4.2.3b 2015-11-ICANN-54-Dublin-Joint-Report
	4.2.3b 2015-11-ICANN-54-Dublin-Joint-Report
	BLANK PAGE Landscape

	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	4.2.3c - IGF2015
	4.2.3c - IGF2015
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	4.2.4 Operations Team Report (final) - December 15
	4.3.1 INZ Group Consolidated Financial Statement QE Sept 2015
	4.3.1 INZ Group Consolidated Financial Statement QE Sept 2015.pdf
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	4.3.2 2015-10 OctFinReport
	5.2a 2012-12-02-Business-Development-Strategy-and-Policy
	5.2b 2015-11-BusinessDevtStrategy-DRAFT
	5.2b 2015-11-BusinessDevtStrategy-DRAFT
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	5.2c 2015-11-GroupPolicy-BusinessDevelopment-Draft
	5.3a 2015-12-02-dotNZ-Framework-Policy-paper
	5.3a 2012-12-02-dotNZ-Framework-Policy-paper
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	5.3b 2015-11-dotnz-framework-policy-draft-5
	5.3b 2015-11-dotnz-framework-policy-draft-5
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	5.3c 2014-09 nz Framework
	5.3c 2014-09 nz Framework
	BLANK PAGE Landscape

	5.4 Letter - new staff member for research
	5.4 Letter - new staff member for research
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	5.5a 2015-12-01-Statement-of-Expectations-2016-17
	5.5a 2015-12-01-Statement-of-Expectations-2016-17
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	5.5b 2016-2017-SoE-DNCL-draft
	5.5c 2016-2017-SoE-NZRS-draft
	5.7.1 2nd Quarter Report 2015-16
	NZRS 2015-16 2nd Qtr Report - v2
	6.4.5 September 2015 Quarterly Reports
	NZRS Limited - ABE Draft Report V4(A)

	5.7.2 DNCL 2nd quarter report and financials 2015-16
	5.7.3 Joint .nz joint report - 2015-16 Q2 - Final (1)
	5.7.3 Joint .nz joint report - 2015-16 Q2 - Final (1)
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	6.1.1a PBE Declaration
	6.1.1a PBE Declaration
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	6.1.1b COM-AUR-Audit-Risk-TOR 1.2
	6.1.1a COM-AUR-Audit-Risk-TOR 1.2
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	6.1.1c FINAL A&R minutes - 29 October 2015
	6.1.1b FINAL A&R minutes - 29 October 2015
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	6.1.1d DRAFT Audit & Risk meeting minutes - 20 November 2015
	6.1.1c DRAFT Audit & Risk meeting minutes - 20 November 2015
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	6.1.3a Māori Engagement Working Party
	6.1.3a Māori Engagement Working Party
	BLANK PAGE Portrait

	6.1.3b ToR Māori Engagement Committee (draft Dec 2015)
	6.1.3b ToR Māori Engagement Committee (draft Dec 2015)
	BLANK PAGE Portrait


	InternetNZ - List of Acronyms
	xANNOTATED Agenda Council Meeting December 2015

